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Opinion 
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Maharashtra, India 

Tel: +91226185 6000 
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Blue Star Engineering & 
Electronics Limited (the "Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 
31'\ 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
material accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS") 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31st, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash 
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

• Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

• In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Company's Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's 
'financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes 
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in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 
3 l5t, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 3l5t, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with the requ irements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year 
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(les) , 
includ ing foreign entities ("Intermed iaries"), with the underst anding , 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary sha ll, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any 
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person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement. 

v . The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and 
has not proposed final dividend for the year. 

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has 
used accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for 
the financial year ended March 31st, 2025 which have the feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software 
systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across 
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit 
trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements 
for record retention. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by 
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 5, 2025 

For Deloitte Haskin & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 

Membership No. 100459 
UDIN: 25100459BMMHLC2879 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
"Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
Blue Star Electronics and Engineering Limited (the "Company") as at March 31st, 2025 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India". These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31st, 2025, based on the 
criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by 
the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 5, 2025 

For Deloitte Haskin & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. ll 7366W/W-100018) 

1~ 
~~ 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 

Membership No. 100459 
UDIN: 25100459BMMHLC2879 
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirement' section of our report of even date) 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

(i)(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and investment 
properties. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

(i)(b) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, 
investment properties, so to cover all the items once every 3 years which, in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the program, certain assets were due for verification during the year and were 
physically verified by the management during the year. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(i)(c) Based on our examination of the reg istered title deed and other records provided to 
us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed 
in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant 
and equipment and investment property are held in the name of the Company as at the 
balance sheet date. 

(i)(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets during the year. 

(i)(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 3pt, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii){a) The inventories except for (goods-in-transit), were physically verified during the 
year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and based on information 
and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its operations. In respect of goods in transit, the goods have been received subsequent to 
the year end. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories, when compared with 
the books of account. 

(ii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time 
during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets . In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or 
statements comprising (stock statements, debtors and creditors) filed by the Company 
with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of 
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the respective quarters. The company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility 
from the financial institutions. · 

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans, to companies during the year, in respect 
of which: 

(iii)(a) The Company has provided unsecured loans, during the year and details of which 
are given below: 

Amount (Rs. In crores) 
Particular Loans 
A. Aqqregate amount qranted / provided durinq the year: 
- Parent Company 245 
- Fellow Subsidiary 128 
- others (Emolovees) 0.09 
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above 
cases : 
- Parent Company 125 
- Fellow Subsidiarv 80 
- others (Emplovees) 0.55 

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to any other entity during the 
year. 

(iii)(b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned 
loans provided, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the 
Company's interest. 

(iii) (c) In respect of loans granted the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of 
interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of 
interest are regular as per stipulation. 

(iii)(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue 
amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

(iii)(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been 
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given 
to the same parties. 

(iii)(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed, the company has not granted any loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, during the year. Hence 
reporting under clause (iii) (f) is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and 
securities provided, as applicable. 

(v)The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the 
Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory 
dues: 

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited by it with the 
appropriate authorities. 
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 3l5t, 2025 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable. 

(vii) (b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been 
deposited as on March 3l5t, 2025 on account of disputes are given below: 

Name of Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum 
the Statute the Dues (Rs. In Paid which the where 

crores) (Rs.In Amount Dispute is 
crores) Relates Pendina 

Maharashtra Value Added 1.22 0.99 FY 2013-14 Appellate 
Value Added Taxes, Tribunal 
Tax, 2022 Interest, and 

Penalty on the 
same 

GST Law, GST Tax, Appellate 
Delhi Interest 0.04 0.0016 2017-18 Authority 

Penalty on the 
same 

GST Law, GST Tax, 0.01 0.0005 2017-18 Appellate 
Kera la Interest Authority 

Penalty on the 
same 

GST Law, GST Tax, 0.18 0.01 2020-21 Appellate 
Gujrat Interest Authority 

Penalty on the 
same 

GST Law, GST Tax, 0.85 0.04 2018-19 Appellate 
Delh i Interest Authority 

Penalty on the 
same 

GST Law, GST Tax, 0.08 0.0041 2019-20 Appellate 
Delhi Interest Authority 

Penalty on the 
same 

GST Law, GST Tax, 0.60 0.03 2019-20 Appellate 
Telangana Interest Authority 

Penalty on the 
same 

GST Law, GST Tax, 0.54 0.05 2020-21 Appeal yet to 
Maharashtra Interest filed 

Penalty on the 
same 
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(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were 
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

(ix)(a) In our opinion, the company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other 
borrowings, or in payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

(ix)(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no 
unutilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)( c) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(ix)( d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised 
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 

(ix)(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the 
year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

(ix)(f) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the 
year and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x)(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xi)(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on 
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(xi)(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto 
the date of this report. 

(xi)(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints 
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in terms of Rule 4 of the 
Companies (Appointment and qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Rule 6 of 
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, provisions of Section 177 
of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 
In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with 188 of the Companies Act, where 
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party 
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

(\ \ ) 
/ 
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(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and the nature of its business. 

(xiv) (b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the 
year and covering the period upto March 3pt, 2025. 

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions 
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi)( a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(xvi) {d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting 
under clause (xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our 
audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 
year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans 
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) The Company has fully spent the required amounts towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) and there is no unspent CSR amount for the current financial year 
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special 
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 5, 2025 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No 117366W/W-100018) 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 

Membership No. 100459 
UDIN: 25100459BMMHLC2879 



Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Lim ited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Bala.nee Sheet as at March 31 2025 
Particulars 

A ASSETS 
1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) lnveslment Properties 
(c) Right-of-use Assets 
(d) Intangible Assets 
(e) Financial Assets 

- Loans 
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
(g) Other Non-current Assets 

Total Non Current Assets 

2. Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Contract Assets 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade Receivables 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other Financial Assets 

(c) Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

B EQUITY AND LIABILmES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 
(b) Other Equity 

Total Equity 

2. Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Contract Liabilities 
(b) Financial Liabilities 

(a) Lease Liabilities 
(b) Other Financial Liabilities 

Total Non-current Liabilities 

3. Current Liabilities 
(a) Contract Liabilities 
(b) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade Payables 
a. Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 

Enterprises 
b. Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro 

Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 

(c) Other Current Liabilities 
(d) Provisions 
(e) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Total ·Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

TOTAL· EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

In terms of our report attached 
For DELOIITE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 
Membership No: 100459 

Place : Mumbai 
Dale: May 5, 2025 

If Crores1 
Notes As at As at 

31st March, 2025 31st March 2024 

3(a) 18.09 14.90 
3(b) 26.53 34.16 
3(d) 0.90 . 
3(c) 0.53 0.36 

4(a) 0.26 0.25 
18 3.97 3.64 
10 10.55 21 .81 

60.83 75.12 

5 42.82 49.42 
9 3.41 4.29 

6 20.41 30.02 
7 51.82 87.23 
8 64.77 54.88 

4(a) 205.29 120.38 
4(b) 1.25 1.14 
10 27.85 38.31 

417.62 385.67 

478.45 460.79 

11(a) 10.59 10.59 
11(b) 297.74 257.13 

308.33 267.72 

15 11.27 11.99 

13 0.74 -
14 2.82 2.58 

14.83 14.57 

15 19.94 37.40 

12 3.32 3.98 

12 66.26 78.34 

13 0.20 . 
16 26.77 28.92 
17 18.33 11.23 
18 20.47 18.64 

155.29 178.SO 

170.12 193.07 

478.45 460.79 

2 
1 to44 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

VirS Advani 
Chairman 
Din: 01571278 

\£' ... 
CEO & Director 
Din: 07249861 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 23, 2025 

Nikhil Sohoni 
Director 
Din: 06852639 

Yogesh Joshi 
CFO & Company Secretary 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31 , 2025 
Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Total Income (I) 

Expenses 
Cost of material consumed and project cost 
Purchase of stock-in-trade 
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Finance costs 
Other expenses 

Total Expenses (II) 

Profit before tax (I) - (II) 

Tax Expense I (Credit) 
i) Current tax 
ii) Deferred tax I (Credit) 

Total tax expense (Ill) 

Profit after tax (IV) 

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 
susequent periods 
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 
Income tax effect 
Other comprehensive (loss) I income (V) 

Total comprehensive income (IV+V) 
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 2 each 
Basic ( in Rs) 
Diiuted ( in Rs) 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

In terms of our report attached 
For DELOITIE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 
Membership No: 100459 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: May 5, 2025 

Notes 

19 
20 

21 
21 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

18 
18 

2 
1to44 

I' CroresJ 
For the vear ended 

31st March. 2025 31st March 

353.66 
29.95 

383.61 

27.54 
209.88 

6.60 
41 .95 

2.83 
0.55 

41.23 

330.58 

53.03 

13.18 
(0.32) 
12.86 

40.17 

0.09 
(0.02) 
0.07 

40.24 

7.59 
7.59 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

VirSAdvani 
Chairman 
Din: 01571278 

\~ 
\~Kalliath 

Nikhil Sohoni 
Director 
Din: 06852639 

'b~ 
Yogesh Joshi 

2024 

383.01 
13.02 

396.03 

31 .49 
239.07 
(10.03) 
39.25 
2.45 
0.76 

30.29 

333.30 

62.73 

16.45 
(0.07) 
16.38 

46.35 

(0.09) 
0.02 

(0.07) 

46.28 

8.76 
8.76 

CEO & Director 
Din: 07249861 

CFO & Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 23, 2025 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics LlmHed 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
St.thlment Of Cash Flowa For The Year Ended March 31 2025 
Particulars 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Pront berore tax 

AdJustm• nta for : 

Deprel:lation and amortization e>q>ense 
Flnance costs 
Interest Income 
Na-I gain on sale of investments in mutual tund 
Fair Value gain offinancial instrument 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment other than freehold land 
Profit on sale of invaslment property 
Bad debts written off and provision for doubtful debts 
f rovl!llon for doubtful debts and advances and •><Peeled credit loss (net) 
Net Translation gain on monetary assets/liabilities (unrealised) 
Provisions and liabilities no longer required, written back 
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 
Movements in working capital : 
lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables 
Increase/( decrease) in provisions 
lncrease/(decrease) in other liabilities 
lncrease/(decrease) in contract liabilities 
(lncreaso)/decreaso in trade receivables 
(lncrease)/decrease in inventories 
(lncre.aso)ldecrease in other assets/financial assets 
lncroaGCi(dettease) in contract assets 
Uncree•e)/decrcase in other assets 
C.11h generated from operations 
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Paymont towards purchase of property, plant & equipment (net) 
Proceeds from sale of investment property 
Payment towards investment in mutual fund 
Proceeds from redemption of mutual fund 
Interest received 
Proceeds from repayment of inter corporate deposit (net) 
Inter corporate deposit given 
Not cash flow used In Investing activities IB) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Rapaymoi\t of lease liabilities 
lnleresl paid 
Not cash flow used In financing activities (C) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B + C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Effects of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash 
equivalents 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

- On current accounts 
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 
- Cash on hand 

TOTAL CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS IRerer nob! e1 

(f CrorH) 
Year ended Year ended 

31at March 2025 31st March 2024 

53.03 62.73 

63.03 62.73 

2.83 2.45 
0.45 0.76 

(13.94) (12.20) 
(3.19) (0.68) 
(0.17) 
0.36 0.02 

(12.50) 
1.01 

2.06 (0.14) 
(0.30) (0.08) 
(3.31) (1.87) 
25.31 52.00 

(9.46) (10.64) 
6.99 1.45 
(1.16) (17.90) 

(18.19) 
33.35 (4.36) 
6.60 (10.03) 
(0.03) 0.24 
0.88 -

24.58 2.05 
68.88 12.82 

(11 .38) 110.36 
57.50 2.46 

(5.21) (2.09) 
19.00 -

(218.40) (146.60) 
231 .18 127.39 

11 .08 12.20 
288.00 155.00 

1373.00) 1120.00) 
147.35 25.90 

(0.27) -
(0.45 (0.76) 
10.72 10.76 

9.44 27.60 
54.88 27.08 

0.45 0.20 

64.77 54.88 

2.69 12.01 
62.01 42.80 

0.07 0.07 

64.77 54.U 

Note : The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out In the Ind AS-7 on the Statement of Cash Flow as notified under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

In terms of our report attached 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SEUS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 
Membership No: 100459 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: May 5, 2025 

1 to44 

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of 

Blue StarEnglneertng & Elec~ 

/l;~( ~ot--- '"' ,, 
VlrS Advanl 
Chairman 
Din: 01571278 

'~ ~ ; cm Kalllalh 

~~o & Diredor 
Din; 07249861 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 23, 2025 

Nlkhll Sohonl 
Director 
Din: 06852639 

Yogesh Joshi 
CFO & Company Secretary 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(A) Equity Share Capital 

For the vear ended March 31 2025 !f Crores) 

Balance as at April 1, 2024 Changes In Equity Share Capital during the year 
Balance as at March 

31,2025 

10.59 - 10.59 

F th or e vear ended March 31 , 2024 

Balance as at April 1, 2023 Changes In Equity Share Capital during the year 
Balance as at March 

31,2024 

10.59 - 10.59 

(B) other Equity 

For the vear ended March 31 . 2026 
Particulars Reserves & Surolus 

Share Premium 
(refer note 11(b)) 

Capital Reserves Retained Earning 

As at April 1, 2024 18.84 77.62 160.67 

Adjustment during the year (refer note:38) 0.37 - -
Profit for the year - - 40.17 

Other comprehensive income - - 0.07 

As at March 31, 2025 19.21 77.62 200.91 

For the vear ended March 31 , 2024 
Particulars Reserves & Surolus 

Share Premium 
Capital Reserves Retained Earning 

(refer note 11(b)) 

As at April 1, 2023 20.89 77.62 114.39 

Adiustment durina the vear (refer note:38) (2.05) - -
Profit for the period - - 46.35 

Other comprehensive loss - - (0.07) 

As at March 31 , 2024 18.84 77.62 160.67 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1 to44 

In terms of our report attached 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 
Membership No: 100459 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: May 5, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

VirS Advani 
Chairman 
Din: 01571278 

\2~.lh 

Nikhil Sohoni 
Director 
Din: 06852639 

Yogesh Joshi 

{f Crores) 

Total Other 
Equity 

257.13 

0.37 

40.17 

0.07 

297.74 

Total Other 
Equity 

212.90 

(2.05) 

46.35 

(0.07) 

257.13 

CEO & Director 
Din: 07249661 

CFO & Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 23, 2025 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

Corporate information 

Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited ("the Company") is a public company incorporated in the year 2010 (with effect from 27th February 2015, the 
name of the Company has changed from Blue Star Electro Mechanical Limited to Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited). The registered office of the 
company is located at Kasturi Buildings, Jamshedji Tata Road, Mohan T Advani Chowk, Mumbai - 400020 
The Company is into distribution and maintenance of imported professional electronics and industrial systems and in the business of providing Plumbing & 
Fire Fighting Contracting Services, providing engineering services in the field of refrigerators and air conditioning, heating and ventilation and also renting of 
properties. 
The financial statements of the Company have been approved by its Board or Directors on 23rd April , 2025 

2 Summary Material Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of preparation and presentation 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for certain items that are measured at fair value 
at the end of each reporting period as required by relevant Ind AS: 
•Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial Instruments); 
• Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefrts. 

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting standards ('Ind AS'), including the rules notified under 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (as amended from time to time) and Presentation and disdosure requirements of Division II of Schedule 
Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS Compliant Schedule Ill) as amended from time to time. 
The accounting policies adopted for preperation and presentation of financial statement have been consistent with previous year. 
The financial statements are presented in and all values are rounded to the nearest crores, except when otherwise indicated. 

(b) Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the 
Company to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disdosures relating to contingent assets and liabilities 
and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented • 
Estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the periods in which the 
estimates are revised and in future periods affected. 
Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements are disclosed in Note 27. 

(c) Revenue recognition 

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that 
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and 
schemes offered by the Group as part of the contract. 

i. Revenue from sale of traded goods: 

Revenue from sale of traded goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer. Indicators that control has been transferred 
include, the establishment of the Company's present right to receive payment for the goods sold, transfer of legal title to the customer, transfer of physical 
possession to the customer, transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods to the customer, and the acceptance of the goods by the 
customer. 

The Company provides preventive maintenance services on its certain products at the time of sale. These maintenance services are sold together with the 
sale of product. Contracts for such sales of product and preventive maintenance services comprise two performance obligations because the promises to 
transfer the product and to provide the preventive maintenance services are capable of being distinct. Accordingly, a portion of the transaction price is 
allocated to the preventive maintenance services and recognised as a contract liability. Revenue is recognised over the period in which the preventive 
maintenance service is provided based on the time elapsed. 

ii. Revenue from construction contracts: 

Contract revenues are recognised based on the stage of completion of the contract activity. Revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract costs 
incurred for satisfying the performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs, there being a direct relationship between the input and the productivity. 
Claims are accounted for as income when accepted by the customer. 
Expected loss, if any, on a contracts is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract. 
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract if any, (such as professional fees and commission paid to acquire the contract) are recognized as assets and 
amortized over the term of the contract. 
Contract modifications are accounted for, when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. Accounting for 
modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is a standalone selling 
price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, 
either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a 

new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price. 

iii. Revenue from sale of services: 

Revenue from services rendered over a period of time, such as annual maintenance contracts, are recognised on straight line basis over the period of the 
performance obligation. Commission income is recognized as and when the terms of the contracts are fulfilled. Repairs & service and installation revenue are 
recognised based on work certified by customer. 
Revenue from service warranty is recognised based on the input cost method(based on the actual performance) of the contract. 

iv. Dividend and Interest Income: 

Dividend income is accounted for when declared and the right to receive the same is established. Interest income is recognized using the effective interest 
method. 

v. Rental income: 

Rental income from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

vi. Other income: 

Other income is recognised as and when right to receive is established. 



Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

(d) Employee benefits 

Short term benefits: 

Salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences and other short term benefits, accruing to employees are recognised at undiscounted amounts in the 
period in which the employee renders the related service. 
Retirement benefits 

Defined contribution plan: 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as expense when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the 
contribution. 
Defined benefit plan: 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the 
contribution. Defined benefit plan: The company makes monthly contributions toward the employees' 
provident fund which is administered by a trust. In the event of an interest shortfall (between the interest declared by the Government and the interest paid by 
the fund) the deficiency is made goad by the company, based on an actuarial valuation. The present value of the defined benefit obligation of employees' 
provident fund is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each year end. The Company's liability 
towards gratuity is determined based on the present value of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets and the net liability or asset is 
recognized in the balance sheet. The net liability or asset represents the deficit or surplus in the plan (the surplus is limited to the present value of the 
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions). The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each 
year end. Defined benefit costs are composed of: 

i. service cost - recognized in profit or loss; 
ii. net interest on the net liability or asset - recognized in profit or loss; 
iii. re-measurement of the net liabiltty or asset - recognized in other comprehensive income 
Other employee benefits : 
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render 
services as consideration for equity instruments. In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014 and the Incl-AS 102 Share based payments, the fair value of options granted under the scheme, cumulative expense recognized for equity­
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the e~tent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of 
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for a period represents the 
movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense. 

Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, 
if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modificalion that increases the total intrinsic value or the share-based 
payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. The Employee stock option scheme is administered 
through Blue Star ESOP Trust. 

BLUE STAR EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME - 2024 

The Company's Parent company (Blue Star Limited) operates equity settled share-based plan for the employees (Referred to as employee stock option plan 
(ESOP) of Blue Star Limited). ESOP granted to the employees are measured at fair value of the stock options at the grant date. Such fair value of the equity 
settled share based payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the Vesting period, based an the Parent Company's estimate of equity shares that 
will eventually vest. The Parent Campany recovers the expenses far the stock options granted ta the employees of the Company. The said recovery is shown 
under Employee benefits expenses (employee stock option expense) of the company. 

Other long-term employee benefits: 
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services 
are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. 
Code on Social Security, 2020 
The Cade on Social Security, 2020 ('the Code') received presidential assent on September 28, 2020. However, the date on which the Code will come into 
effect has not yet been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code on its books of account in the period(s) in which the provisions of the Code 
becomes effective 

Page 6 of 44 



Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No: U70200MH2D1DPLC2D4612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

(e) Leases 

As a lessee 
A the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contrains a lease. A contract is, or contains a lease if a contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

At the date of commencement of a lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU assets") and a corresponding lease liability for all leases, except 
for short-term leases and low value leases. Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 
Lease payments to be made under such reasonably certain extension options are included in the measurement of ROU assets and lease liabilities. 
(a) Right-of-use asset : 
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the unde~ying asset is available for use). Right-of-use 
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of 
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentives received. Righi-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from commencement date to ea~ier of, the end of useful 
life of the ROU assets or the end of the lease term. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section "k" 
Impairment. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows: 
• Office building 1 to 5 years 
(b) Lease liability : 
Lease liability is measured by discounting the lease payments using the interest rate using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are re-measured 
with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a 
termination option. 

The company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever: 
• The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase 
option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. 
·A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the 
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification. 
'The Company has opted for the exemption provided under Ind AS 116 for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, hence the lease payments 
associated with those leases are treated as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
As a lessor 
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. 

(f) Foreign currencies 

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee (~). 
Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary 
assets and liabilities are translated al the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and 
restatement are recognised in the statement of prof~ or loss. 
Foreign currency denominated non - monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost are not retranslated. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

(g) Taxes 

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change during the year, in the deferred tax asset or liability. Current and deferred taxes are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or in equity, in which case 
the related current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or in equity, respectively. 

Current and Deferred Taxes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on 

tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Tax assets and tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. 

i. Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with 
Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the tax are those that are enacted at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to 
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised 
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

ii. Deferred tax 
Deferred Tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and 
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and 

are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, 

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred 

tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

(h) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Costs comprise of all costs incurred to bring the assets to their location and working condition up to the date the assets are put to their intended use. 

When significant components of plant and equipment are replaced separately, the Company depreciates them based on the useful lives of the components. 
All other assets are depreciated to their residual values on straight line value basis over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives of the assets are as 
follows: 

Nature of tangible asset Useful life (years) 
As per books 

BuildinQS 23-60 
Plant and Machinery 5-20 
Furniture & fixtures 10 
Office equipment 5 
Vehicles 5 
Computers 6 

Useful lives of plant and machinery are higher than those indicated in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 based on management estimates and technical 
assessment made by a technical expert. 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal.Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition I disposal of an asset is included in profit or loss. 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, as appropriate. • 
Capital work-in-progress and capital advance 
Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing 
cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquisition I construction of PPE which are outstanding at the Balance Sheet 
date are classified under the 'Capital Avances'. 

(i) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight· line basis over their estimated useful economic 

lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, 

or when no further economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition is included in profrt or loss. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are as mentioned below: 
Nature of Intangible Asset Method of Amortisation 

Software(Acquired) Straight Line method of assets over a period of 6 years 
The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of Intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as 

appropriate. 

(j) Investment properties 

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, induding 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, 

if any. 

The Company depreciates the building component of investment property over 23 to 60 years on written down value basis from the date of original purchase. 

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic 

benefit is expected from their disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of investment properties is included in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No: U7D200MH201DPLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for Ute year ended 31st March 2025 

(k) Impairment 

i. Financial assets : 
The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on trade receivables. 
In case of trade receivables , the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss 
allowance. 

Ii. Non-financial assets : 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 
or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Companys of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset 
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

Impairment losses induding impairment on inventories are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer 
exist or have decreased. If such indication exists , the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss 
is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

For contract assets, the Company has applied the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance as provided in Ind AS 109 which requires the 
expected lifetime losses from initial recognition of contract assets. 

(I) Financial instruments 

Recognition and initial measurement 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial 
assets and financial liabililies are recognized by the Company when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are Directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a 
financial instrument are adjusted to fair value, except where the financial instrument is measured at Fair Value through profit or loss, in which case the 
transaction costs are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value and having original malurilies of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist 
of balances with banks that are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 
For the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as 
they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 
Wherever the customer has raised issue on contractual I performance obligation on goods and services delivered or received and is under discussion with the 
customer are treated as the disputed amount. 

Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are financial assets within the scope of measurement requirements of Ind AS 109. All financial assets are initially at fair value plus or minus 
the transaction cost. Financial assets in the form of trade receivables, shall be initially measured at their transaction price unless those contain a significant 
financing component determined in accordance with Ind AS 115. 
Financial assets at fair value through oUter comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding 
and selling financial assets. 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income on initial recognition. The transaction costs Directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabil~ies at fair value through profit or loss are 
immediately recognised in stalement Profit and Loss. 

Financial liabilities and equity Instruments 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss indude financial llabililies held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon inltlal recognition as at 
lajr value through profrt or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held lor tr<idlng if they are incurred to repurctiase in the near te:rm. Whenever the vendor 
has ralsed Issue on contractual I performance obligation on goods and services delivered or received and is under discussion with the vendor a.re trealed as 
the disputed amount. Financial liabilities are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through statement Profit and Loss only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 
are satisfied. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

Other financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and lease rental deposits are subsequent to initial recognition, measured at amortised cast using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. 

Offsetting of fin_ancial assets and financial liabilities: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle an a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by 
the Campany are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue costs. 
Derivative financial instruments 
The Company enters into derivative contracts ta hedge foreign currency/price risk on unexecuted firm commitments and 'highly probable forecast 
transactions. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as 
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative 
is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Statement of Profit or Lass depends on the nature of 
the hedged item. 

Derecognition of financial instruments 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights ta the cash flaws from the financial asset expires or it transfers the financial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability is derecognised from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Fair value measurement 
When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded and disclosed in the financial statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices 
in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are 
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include 
consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility risk. 
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair 
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in their entirety, which are described as follows: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date; 

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred 
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whale) at 
the end of each reporting period. 

(m) Inventories 

Inventories including Work- in- Progress (other than construction contracts) are valued at cast or net realizable value, whichever is lower, the cost is worked 
out on a weighted average basis. Cost includes all charges for bringing the goads to their present location and condition . Net realizable value represents the 
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and casts necessary to make the sale. 

(n) Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions 
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. The amount recognised as a provision is the 
best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 
If the effect of. the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
Provisions for warranties . 
The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold I project is completed. These estimates are established using historical 
information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty daims and management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective 
actions on product failures. The timing of outflows will vary as and when warranty daims arise being typically upto five years. 

Contingencies 
Contingent liablllties exist when there is a possible obligation arislng from past events, the existence of whicli will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non­
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events Ylhere it is 
eHher not probable that an outflow of resources emboding economic benefrts will be required or the amount cannot be reliably estimated, Cahllngenl liabilities 
are appropriately disclosed unless the possibility of an outfloYI of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. 
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

(o) Segment reporting 

Segments are identified based on the manner in which the chief operating decision-maker (CODM) decides about the resource allocation and reviews 
performance. 

Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the 
operating activities of the segment. 

Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the basis of transfer price agreed between the segments. Such 
transfer prices are either determined to yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated basis. 

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included 
under "unallocated revenue I expenses I assets/ liabilities". 

(p) Earnings per share 

The Company's Earnings per Share ('EPS') is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders' of the Company. 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit from continuing operations and total profit, both attributable to equity shareholders of the company 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive shares outstanding during the year including share based 
payments, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. 

(q) Current I Non-current classification : 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
•There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities. 

(r) Contract balances : 

Contract assets 

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from project business because the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion 
of the work. Upon completion of the work and acceptance by the customer. The amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables once 
the amounts are billed to the customer as per the condmons of the contract. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting 
policies on impairment of financial assets in section K 'Impairment'. 

Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the 

consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section I 'Financial instruments' - initial recognition and subsequent measurement. 

Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration 
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised 
when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the 
contract. 

(s) Recent accounting pronouncements: • 

New and amended Ind ASs effective from April 01, 2024The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards I amendments to the existing 
standards under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended on March 31, 2025, the MCA has 
notified Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company 
effective from April 01, 2024. The Company has evaluated the new pronouncements I amendments and there is no material impact on its Standalone 
Financial Statements. 
New and revised Ind ASs in issue but not yet effectiveThe Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing 
standards. There is no such notification which will be applicable from April 01, 2025. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Holes to Flnanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

3.(a) Property Plant & Equipment 

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount 

At April 1, 2023 
Additions during the year 
Disposals during the year 

At March 31, 2a24 

Al April 1, 2a24 
Additions during the year 
Disposals during the year 
At March 31, 2025 

Accumulated Depreciation 

At April 1, 2023 
Disposals during lhe year 
Depreciation expense for the year 
At March 31, 2024 

At April 1, 2024 
Disposals during the year 
Depreciation expense for the year 

At March 31 , 2025 

Net carrying amount 
At March 31, 2025 
At March 31, 2024 

ti 

Buildings 

11.94 . 

11.94 

11 .94 . 
. 

11.94 

6.08 

0.21 
6.29 

6.29 

0.21 

6.50 

5.44 
5.64 

Plant and Furniture & 

equipment Fixtures 

4.91 1.34 
1.67 0.05 

(a.a3) . 

6.55 1.39 

6.55 1.39 
3.11 0.58 

(a.OS) (0.33) 
9.81 1.64 

0.76 0.06 
(0.00) 
0.26 0.14 
1.01 0.20 

1.a1 0.20 
(0.00) (0.05) 
0.34 0.14 

1.35 0.29 

8.26 1.36 
5,54 1.19 

- -·---

Office Equipment Vehicles Computers Total 

0.31 2.44 0.05 21.00 
a.03 1.19 a.03 2.97 

(a.52) . (0.55) 

0.33 3.11 0.08 23.41 

a.33 3.11 a.OB 23.41 
a.as 1.12 a.16 5.01 

(0.01) (0.43) (0.81) 
0.37 3.81 0.24 27.61 

0.19 a.58 (a.OO) 7.66 
(0.29) (0.29) 

0,03 0.47 0.02 1.14 
0.22 0.77 0.02 8.51 

0.22 0.77 0.02 8.51 
(0.01) (0.32) (0.38) 
0.03 0.63 0.06 1.40 

0.24 1.07 0.08 9.52 

0.14 2.73 0.16 18.09 
a.11 2.35 0.07 14.90 
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Blue St•r Engineering & Electronlc:s Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Noles to Flnanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

3.(b)lnvestment Properties 

Gross carrying amount 

At April 1. 2023 
Additions during the year 
Disposals during the year 

At March 31, 2024 
Additions during the year 
Disposals during the year 
At March 31, 2025 

Accumulated Amortlutlon 

At Apnl 1, 2023 
Amortization expense for the year 
At March 31, 2024 
Amortization expense for the year 
Disposals during the year 
At March 31, 2025 

Net carrying amount 
At March 31, 2025 
At March 31, 2024 

f Crores 

71 .49 

71.49 

(17.38) 
54.11 

36.05 
1.28 

37.33 
1.13 

(10.89) 
27.57 

26.53 
34.16 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Flnanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

flies recoQnised in the statement or profit and Joss 
Particulars 

Rental income 
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) associated with rental income 
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental income 
Total 
Less -Amortization expenses for the year 
Profit arisinq from investment property before indirect expenses 

I) As at 31sl March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024. lhe ralrvalue of the property is f 56.25 Cmres and f 73.38 Crores respectively. 

31st March, 2025 

3.57 
(0.59) 

2.98 
1.1 3 
1.85 

f Croms 
31st March, 2024 

3.42 
(0.45) 

2.97 
1.28 
1.69 

lij The valuation is based on fair value assessment done by a!X11!diled Independent valuer. A varua11on model tn accordance with that recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee has been applied. 
Valualion Is based on fair value a!>S<!ssment done by reglste<ed va.luer as·deftned uoder rule 2 of Companies (Register Valuers and ValuaUon), Rules 2017. 
Ill) The valuer has followed the Comparative Sales method for tho purpose or this valuation and is bas.ed on lhe sale or premises in the vlclnlty, depending on the size. demand for such premises, qualify of construction, 
amenities offered, JocaUon advantages, and value addition canted out to the premises, etc, 
Iv) The fair value measurement ror an or the lnvos1ment property has been categorised as a. Level 3 fair value based on lhe Inputs to lhe valuatlon lectinlque used. 

v) AJl ihc Ude deed ror Immovable pmperty (olher !hall pmperUes where the Company Ts lhe lessee and the lease agreements t1ll> duly ex.,cu1ed in favour or the leasce) are in the name of the company. 

vi) The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and has no contractual obligations to purt:hase, construct or develop investment properties or has any plans for major repairs, 
maintenance and enhancements. 

~ -

Particulars 

Opening fair value 
Sold during the year 
Movement durino the vear 
Closlno fair value 

If Ej
sKIN,scf 

~ ~ 
t: MUMBAI ~ 

o> 6~ A..0 
~o l' 

* 

31st March 2025 31st Mart:h ZOZ4 
73.36 71.10 

(18.82) . 
1.71 2..26 

56.25 73.36 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 , 2025 

3(c). Intangible Assets 

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount 

At April 1, 2023 
Additions during the year 
Disposals during the year 
At March 31 , 2024 

At April 1, 2024 
Additions during the year 
Disposals during the year 
At March 31, 2025 

Accumulated Amortization 

Al April 1, 2023 
Amortization expense for the year 

At March 31 , 2024 

Al April 1, 2024 
Amortization expense for the year 
Disposals during the year 

At March 31 , 2025 

Net carrying amount 
At March 31 , 2025 
At March 31 , 2024 

3(d).Right Of Use Assets 

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount 
At April 1, 2024 
Additions during the year 
At March 31, 2025 

Accumulated Amortization 
At April 1, 2024 
Additions during the year 
Al March 31, 2025 

Net carrying amount 

Software 

' Crores 

0.28 
0.27 
. 

0.55 

0.55 
0.27 
. 

0.82 

0.13 
0.06 

0.19 

0.19 
0.10 
. 

0.30 

0.53 
0.36 

' Crores 

. 
1.12 
1.12 

-
0.22 
0.22 

0.90 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

4. Financial Assets 

Particulars 

Loans to employees 
Inter-Corporate Deposits (rerer note:29) 

Total Loans 
Note: 

Non-current 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.26 0.25 

- -
0.26 0.25 

i)There are no loans payable on demand without specifying any terms or period of repayment in the current and previous year. 

4{b). Other Financial Assets 
Particulars 

Security Deposit & Earnest Money Deposit 
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Deposit 

Security Deposit & Earnest Money Deposit (Net Balance) 

Total Other Financial Assets 

5. Inventories 

Particulars 

Traded goods (includes in transit: ~ 0.14 Crores (31st March,2024: ~ 0.07 Crores)) 
Demo Stock (net of amort.isatlon) 
Tota.I Inventories 

, ~ ------, 
Current 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.29 0.36 
205.00 120.00 
205.29 120.38 

I' Crores) 
Current 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

1.56 1.45 
(0.31) (0.31) 

1.25 1.14 

1.25 1.14 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

40.12 45.23 
2.70 4.19 

42.82 49.42 

The above inventory value are net of provision made of~ 4.96 Crores (31st March, 2024 ~ 2.86 Crores) for slow moving, obsolete and defective inventories. 

6. Current Investments 
I' Crores) 

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Units Amount Units Amount 
Investment in units of mutual funds 
Mutual fund unquoted 
Kotak liquid direct growth 51,86,407.45 20.41 41,045.40 20.01 
HDFC liquid-DP direct CJrowth - - 21, 107.65 10.01 
Tota l Current Investment 51 ,86,407.45 20.41 62,153.25 30.02 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC2D4612 
Notes to Flnoncial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

7. Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured 
Trade Receivables - Credit lmparied 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts and Expected credit loss Provision 

Total Trade receivables 

(t Crores} 
Current 

31st March, 2025 31 sl March, 2024 

54.46 89.87 
13.36 11.30 
67.81 101.17 

(15.99) (13.94) 

51 .82 87.23 

The movement for allowance for doubdul debts dulioo the vear in rc•p•cl of ttade rec.,;v<!blos containing significant crec!lt risk are as follow.-; 
Particulars 

Openln11 balances as on 11! April 
Pro'lislon for doubtful debts and advances and e)(pected aedit lo., (net) 
Closina balance as on 31s'l Mar'ch 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

13.94 14.08 
2.06 C0.141 

15.99 13.94 

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or "ther officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms 
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

7a Trade receivables ageing schedule 
Trade receivables as on March 31, 2025 
Particulars 

Undisputed 
Undisputed - considered good 
Undisputetj - credit impaired 
Total (A) 

Disputed 
Disputed - considered good 
Disputed - considered doubtful 
Total (B) 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts I Expected credit loss ( C) 
Grand Total (A+B-C) 

Particulars 

Undisputed 
Undisputed - considered good 
Undisputed - credit impaired 
Total (A) 

msputed 
Disputed - considered Good 
Disputed - considered doubtful 
Total (B) 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts and Expected credit loss (C) 
Grand Total (A+B-C) 

Not due 

10.44 

-
10.44 

-
-
-

10.44 

Not due 

35.05 

-
35.05 

-
-
-
-

35.05 

(f Crores) 
Outstandir,g fo r following periods from due dates of pavments as at 31st March 2025 

Less than 6 6 Month -1 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

More than 3 
Grand Total 

Months years Year 

30.10 7.29 2.89 1.02 2.71 54.45 
- - 0.85 0.54 11 .97 13.36 

30.10 7.29 3.74 1.56 14.68 67.81 

- - - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - - -

(15.99) 
30.10 7.29 3.74 1.56 14.68 51.82 

.. - -

Outstandina for followina periods from due dates of payments as at 31st March 2024 
Less than G 6 Month-1 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Grand Total 
Months · years Year 

38.29 6.82 4.79 2.60 2.32 89.87 
- - 0.04 0.26 11 .01 11.30 

38.29 6.82 4.82 2.86 13.32 101.17 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - (13.94) 

38.29 6.82 4.82 2.86 13.32 87.23 

(i)Trade receivables are on non interest bearing credit terms and the credit period of the products are determined by the type of the products. In case of long term construction contracts, payment is generally due 

upon completion of milestone as per terms of contract. In certain contracts, short term advances are received as per payment terms in the contract. before the performance obligation is satisfied. 

(ii) The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets. The Company follows the simplified approach for 

recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables and contract assets. The application of the simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 

impairment allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. ECL impairment loss allowance recognised during the period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under 

the head 'other expenses' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Ele<:tronics Lim;ted 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

8 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with banks: 
- In currenl accounts 
- Fixed DePf?sits 

Cash on hand 

9 Contract Assets 

Particulars 

Contract Assets from contracts 
Contract Assets from annual .11aintenance contract services 
Le..s.s! 1ft'\dAJnnanl Alowance 

The move.men1 for allowance. for doub1ful ca-n1r:oct as.s.el du ta the vear are as. fol O'NS_: 
P1rticul11.rs 

Opening Balance 
Allowance provkfed I re.verst?d durlna Iha v.car 
Closina balance 

10 Other Assets 

Particulars 

Prepaid Gratuity (rarer note 28) 
Capital Advances 
Balance with Government Authorities 
Vendor Advances 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accured Income 

Non-current 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0. 11 0 07 
0.01 0.24 

0.55 

10.43 20.94 
. . 

10.55 21.81 

If Cn>rosl 
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

2.69 12.01 
62.01 42.80 

0.07 0.07 
64.77 54.88 

If cro,..•1 
Current 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

1.45 2.72 
2.54 1.57 

(0.58) . 
3.41 4.29 

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 

(0.09) 
(0.58) 0.09 
(0.5Bl . 

Cl Cro~sl 
Current 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

1.73 2.05 
6.65 18.57 

16.61 16.36 
2.86 1.33 

27.85 38.31 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronlcs Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

11 (a) Share cap Ital 

Authorised shue capli..1 

10% Cumulative redeemable preference shares of 
f 100 each 

Equity shares off 2 each 

Terms & rights to preference shares : 

31st March, 2025 
No. 

18,00,000 

5,50,00,000 

31st March, 2024 
ff Croresl No. If Croresl 

18.00 18,00,000 18.00 

11.00 5,50,00,000 11.00 

The preference shares shall rank for the dividend in priority to the equity shares of the Company in the event of increase in share capital or winding up of the Company up to amount 
of dividend or any arrears of dividend. Preference share holders will not have any further right to participate in the profits or assets of the Company. 

Terms/rights attached to equity shares 
The company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of ~ 2 per share. Each share holder is enlilled to one vole per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, 
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, aner distribution of all preferenllal amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion of 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Issued and subscribed and paid up Equity share capital 

Equity Shares of~ 2 each issued, subscribed & fully paid up 

Partlculars 

At lhe beolnnlno of the vcar 
Issued during the year 
OutslandinQ at the end of the year 

31st March, 2025 
No. of shares 

5 29 25 052 

5,29,25,052 

Amount 
10.59 

. 
10.59 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder 31st March 2025 
Numbers % holding In the class 

Blue Siar Limited, the Holding Company and its 
5,29,25,052 100.00% 

Nominees 

Shareholding pattern of promoters and changes In holding during the year 

Name orthe shareholder 31st March, 2025 

Numbers % holding In the class 

Blue Star Limited, the Holding Company and its 
5,29,25,052 100.00% 

Narnin_ees 

31 &t March, 2024 
No. of shares Amount 

5.29.25.052 10.59 
. 

5,29,25,052 10.59 

31st March 2024 
Numbers % holding In the 

class 

5,29,25,052 100.00% 

31st March, 2024 

Numbers % holding In the 
class 

5,29,25,052 100.00% 

There were no shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date. 

11 (b) Other Equity-Nature & purpose of Reserve 

% Changes during 
the year 

0% 

Securities premium - Where the Company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium received on those 

shares have been transferred lo •securities Premium Reserve". These reserves shall be used in accordance with the section 52 of the companies Act, 2013 as amended from time 

lo time. 
Capital reserve -The capital reserve recognised in \he financial statements denote the excess of the Nel Assets acquired over the amount of consideration transferred in business 
combination transactions. These reserves shall not be utilised for payment of dividend. 

General reserve/ retained earnings. General reserve is created out of the profits eamed by the Company by way of transfer from surplus in the statement of profit and loss. The 
Company can use this reserve for payment of dividend and issue of fully paid-up and not paid-up bonus shares. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Umlted 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

other Equity 

For the vear ended March 31 , 2025 
Particulars 

Share Premium 

As at April 1. 2024 18.84 
Adjustment during lhe year (refer nole :38) 0.37 
Profit for the year -
Other Comorehensive lncome/(loss) 
As at March 31, 2025 19.21 

For the vear ended March 31 , 2024 
Particulars 

Share Premium 

As al April 1, 2023 20.89 
Adjustment during the vear (refer note :38) (2.05) 
Profit for the oeriod 
Other Comorehensive lncomel(loss) -
As at March 31, 20.24 18.84 

Reserves & Surplus 

Capital Reserves 

77.62 

-
-

77.62 

Reserves & Surplus 

Capital Reserves 

77.62 

-

77.62 

If Crores) 

Retained Eamlng 
Total Other Equity 

160.67 257.13 

- 0.37 
40.17 40.17 

0,07 0.07 
200.91 297.74 

If Crores) 

Retained Eamlng 
Total Other Equity 

114.39 212.90 

- (2.05) 
46.35 46.35 
f0.071 i 0.071 

160.67 257.13 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

12 Trade Payables 

Particulars 

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer below note) 
Dues of other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total Payable 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises Disclosure 

(f Crores) 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

3.32 3.98 
66.26 78.34 

69.58 82.32 

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available 
with the Company. 
Disclosure as per section 22 of MSME Act (f Crores) 
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

(a) (i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 
accounting year 3.32 3.98 
(ii) Interest due on above 

- -
(b) Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Act 

-
(c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the due date during the year - -
(d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year - -
(e) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Act, 2006 

- -

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as 'Micro and Small 

Enterprises' on the basis of information available with the Company. 

* Interest on overdue balances of micro and small enterprises is fully provided. Interest provided is unclaimed by the vendor. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

Note: 12 (cont.) 
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule 
Trade payables as on 31st March. 2025 
Particulars 

Acceptance 
Undisputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total 

Particulars 

Acceptance 
Undisputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Du.es to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total 

fl 

-. 
Outstanding for following periods from due dates of payments 

as at 31st March 2025 Total 

Not Due 
Less than 1 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Year Years 

- - - - - -
-

3.32 - - - - 3.32 
41.83 21.20 0.29 0.13 2.80 66.26 
45.15 21.20 0.29 0.13 2.80 69.58 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -

45.15 21.20 0.29 0.13 2.80 69.58 

Outstanding for following periods from due dates of payments 
as at 31st March 2024 Total 

Not Due 
Less than 1 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Year Years 
4.21 - - - - 4.21 

3.98 - - - - 3.98 
42.87 26.84 1.61 0.81 1.99 74.12 
51.06 26.84 1.61 0.81 1.99 82.32 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -

51.06 26.84 1.61 0.81 1.99 82.32 
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CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

13 Lease Liabilities 

Particulars 

Lease Liabilities 
Tota.I 

Movement in lease liabllltles 
Balance as at 1st April 
Addilion during the year 
Add: Interest for the year 
Less: Paid during the year 
Balance as at 31st March 

Particulars 
Lease Liabilities 
Before 3 months 
3-6 months 
6-12 months 
1-3 years 
3-5 vears 
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 

- ----- - ---- _ _ _ ="' ___ _ _ _ --- - - - - - ·- -- - - -- - -- - - - --- -- - - - -- --

Particulars 
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
Depreciation expenses 
Interest on lease liabilities 
Expense relating to short term lease 
Expense relating to lease of low value assets 
Variable lease oavrnents 
Amounts recognised in statement of cash flow 
Total cash oulflow for leases 

- -- -- --
Non-Current Current 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.74 - 0.20 -
0.74 . 0.20 . 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
. -

1.11 . 
0.10 . 

(0.27) . 
0.94 . 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.06 -
0.06 -
0.12 -
0.57 . 
0.33 . 
1.15 . 

31st March 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.22 . 
0.10 -
. -
- . 
. . 

10.271 . 
The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as 
and when they fall due. 
Variable lease payments 
Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to space used for warehouse whenever required by the Company. Variable lease payments that depends 
on variable space requirement are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs. 

Extension and termination options 
Extension and termination options are included in some of the leases across the Company. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets 
in the Company's operation. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable by both the Company and by the respective lessor. Further the Company 

expects not to use that options. 

fr 
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CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

14 Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
Capital Creditors 
Security deposits 

Total other financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Total 

15 Contract Liabilities 

Particulars 

Contract liabilties from contracts with customer 
Contract liabilties from AMC 
Total 

16 Other Liabilities 

Particulars 

Advances from customers 
Dues to Statutory bodies 
Others 
Total 

# 

- - - -
Non-current 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.26 0.02 
2.56 2.56 

2.82 2.58 

2.82 2.58 

Non-Current Current 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

. . 1.67 19.81 
11.27 11 .99 18.26 17.59 
11.27 11.99 19.94 37.40 

Current 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

22.47 21 .11 
1.67 5.88 
2.63 1.94 

26.77 28.92 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH201 OPLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

17 Provisions 

Particulars 
31st March 

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 28) 
Provision for Gratuity 
Provision for Compensated absences 
Provision for Additional Gratuity 

Total (A) 

Other provisions 
Provision for warranties 
Provision for forseeable losses 

Total (B) 

Total (A+B) 

Provision for warranties 

'" Crores) 
Current 

2025 31st March, 2024 

- -
1.21 1.21 
- -

1.21 1.21 

17.12 9.43 

- 0.59 

17.12 10.02 

18.33 11.23 

Warranty is provided to the customer for a period of 12-60 months from the handing over of the project and on sale of traded goods. A 

provision is recognised for expected warranty claims comprising of claims for material, spares,labour and other items in connection with the 

sale/contract on jobs completed during provision periods and on warranty provided on sale of traded goods, based on past experience of such 

claims. 

Movement in provision for warranty 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
Balance as at 1st April 9.43 7.59 
Provision made during the year 9.32 5.46 
Utilized /Adjusted during the year (1.63) {3.61) 
Balance as at 31st March 17.12 9.43 

Movement in provision for forseeable losses 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
Balance as at 1st April 0.59 0.94 
Provision made during the year -
Utilized /Adjusted during the year (0.59) (0.35) 
Balance as at 31st March - 0.59 
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CIN No: U7020cMHZ010PLC2D4612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

18. Income tax 

A) Current tax asset I (liabilities) 

Particulars 

Opening Balance 
Less: Current tax payable for the year 
Add: Taxes paid (Net of refund) 
Closing Balance 

B) Deferred Tax Assets 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Asset· (A] 

Provision for loss allowance 
Provisions made disallowed and allowed only on payment basis 
Lease Liablities 
Written Down Value of Fixed Assets 
Deferred Tax Liability - [B] 

Written Down Value of Fixed Assets 
Right of use of w.:set9' 
Others 
Net Deferred Tax Asset - (A-B] 

C) Movement in Deferred Tax Assets 

Partlculars 

Deferred Tax Asset· (A] 

Provision for loss allowance 
Provisions made disallowed and allowed only on payment basis 
Lease Liablities 
Written Down Value of Fixed Assets 
Olhers 
Peferred Tax Liability - [B] 

Written Down Value of Fixed Assets 
Right of use of assets 
Others 
Net Deferred Tax Asset - [A-B] 

It' Croresl 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

(18.64) (12.57) 
(13.20) (16.42) 
11.37 10.35 

(20.47) 118.64) 

(f Crores) 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

4.02 3.51 
0.37 0.13 
0.23 -
- 0.05 

(0.41) -
(0.24) -- (0.04) 
3.97 3.64 

It' Croresl 
Charge/ (Credit) to Statement of P&L 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

(0.51) 0.04 
(0.24) (0.07) 
(0.23) . 
0.05 (0.07) 
. 0.02 

0.41 -
0.24 -

(0.04) 0.02 
(0.32) (0.07) 

D)Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 31st March, 2025 and 31st 
March, 2024 : • 

(f Crores) 
Particulars For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Accoun1i11g profit before income tax 53.03 62.73 
Income tax at India's statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2024: 25.168%) 13.35 15.79 
Expenses disallowed for tax purpose 0.24 0.19 
Benefit of lower tax rate on account of certain income/ exp. .(0.77) 0.12 
Disallowance on depreciation of investment propertles 0.04 0.28 
At the effective income tax rate 12.86 16.38 

E) Income tax expense reportctl In the statement of profit and loss 
(t' Crores) 

Particulars For the veer ended 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Profrt or loss Section 
Current Income tax: 
Current tax 13.18 16.45 
Total current income tax charge 13.18 16.45 
Deferred tax: 
Deferred tax credit/ charge recognised in the statement of profit and loss (0.32) (0.07) 
lncom·e tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 12.86 16.38 

F) Income tax expense reported in the other comprehensive income 
(f C ron~s) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2025 31st March , 2024 

Profit or loss Section 
Current Income tax: 
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 0.02 (0.02) 

Income tax expense reported In the other comprehensive Income 0.02 (0.02 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH201 OPLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

19. Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
Sale of products 
Sale of Services 
Contract revenue 
Rental Income 
Other operating revenue 
Sale of Scrap 
Provisions and liabilities no longer required, written back 
Commission Income 
Total revenue from operations (refer note 40) 

20. Other income 

Particulars 

Finance Income 
- Inter-Corporate deposit 
- Banks 

Other non-operating income 
Net Translation gain on monetary assets/liabilities 
Net gain on sale of investments in mutual fund 
Interest on Financial Assets 
Profit on sale of Investment Property & PPE 
Other Income 
Total 

(f Crores) 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

284.12 312.64 
60.15 52.96 

- 12.08 
3.57 3.42 

0.00 0.03 
3.31 1.87 
2.51 0.01 

353.66 383.01 

(~ Crores) 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

9.63 10.83 
4.31 1.37 

0.07 0.08 
3.19 0.68 
0.17 -

12.14 -
0.44 0.06 

29.95 13.02 
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CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

21. Cost of Raw Material and Components Consumed 

Particulars 

Cost of material consumed and project costs 

Total cost of material consumed and orolect costs 

I Purchase of Stock in Trade 

i l Changes n nventories of traded goods 
Inventories at the end of!he year 
Traded goods 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 
Traded goods . 
(Increase) I Decrease in inventories 

22. Employee benefits expense 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Gratuity expense (refer note 28) 
Other employment benefits (refer note 28) 
Directors sitting fees 
Expenses on employees stock option of the holding company* 
Staff welfare expenses 

(f Crores) 
For the year ended 

31st March. 2025 31st March. 2024 

27.54 31.49 

27.54 31.49 

209.88 239.07 I 

42.82 49.42 
42.82 49.42 

49.42 39.40 
49.42 39.40 

6.60 110.03) 

(f Crores) 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

38.62 36.29 
1.39 1.38 
0.35 0.36 
0.51 0.59 
0.11 0.11 
0.21 -
0.75 0.51 

41.95 39.25 . •ounng the year ended March 31 , 2025, the Parent Company implemented "BLUE STAR EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME - 2024 . 
The Plan enables grant of stock options to the eligible employees of the ultimate Parent Company and its subsidiaries. During the year, the 
Company has recognized an expense of~ 0.21 crores (March 31 , 2024 - ~ Nil). 

23. Depreciation and amortization expenses 
(f Crores) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March. 2025 31st March, 2024 

Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment 1.38 1.11 
Amortization of Intangible Assets 0.10 0.06 
Depreciation on Investment Properties 1.13 1.28 
Depreciation on right-of-use of Asset 0.22 -

2.83 2.45 
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CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

24. Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 

Interest on Bank borrowings 
Bank charges 
Interest on lease liabilities 
Interest on delayed pavment of tax 

25. Other expenses 

Particulars 

Stores and spares consumed 
Rent 
Rates and taxes 
Power and fuel 
Insurance 
Repairs and maintenance 
Advertising and sales promotion 
Conference Expenses 
Communication Expenses 
Freight and forwarding charges 
Travelling and conveyance 
Printing and stationery 
Legal and professional fees 
Payment to auditors (Refer details A below ) 
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer details B below) 
Loss on sale of property, plant, and equipment (net) 
Bad debts I advances written off 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances and expected credit loss (net) 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Share Service charges (refer note 29)· 

(f Crores) 
For the ' ear ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.12 0.13 
0.31 0.50 
0.10 -
0.01 0.13 
0.55 0.76 

(" Crores) 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.02 0.01 
2.68 3.07 
1.21 0.44 
0.57 0.10 
0.26 0.21 
0.47 0.38 
0.75 1.13 
0.01 0.00 
0.96 0.90 
2.47 3.07 
9.19 9.76 
0.23 0.25 

12.15 6.22 
0.33 0.29 
0.95 0.77 

- 0.02 
- 1.01 

2.06 (0.14) 
1.22 1.48 
5.70 1.32 

41.23 30.29 
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CIN No : U70200MH201 OPLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the ye3r ended 31st March 2025 

A. Payment to auditors 

Particulars 

As auditor 
Audit fee 
Limited review 
Tax audit 

In other capacity 
Other services 
Reimbursement of expenses 

B. Corporate social responsibility expenses 

Particulars 

i) Amount required to be spent by the company 
ii) Amount of expenditure incurred 
iii) Shortfall/ (Excess) during the end of the year 
iv) Total of previous year shortfall / excess 
v) Reason for shortfall 
vi) Nature of CSR activities 

vii) Details of related parties 
viil)Where a provision made with respect to a liability by entering into a contractual obligation, the 
movement in the provision during the year shown separately 

C. The company has made political contribution off Nil during FY24-25 (FY 23-24 f Nil) 

26. Earning Per Share (EPS) 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations · 
Particulars 

Profit attributable to equity share holders of the company 
Weighted average number of Equity shares 
Basic and diluted earnings per share 

(f Croresi 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.19 0.19 
0.07 0.07 
0.03 0.03 

0.02 -
0.03 0.01 
0.33 0.29 

(f Crores) 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.95 0.77 
0.95 0.77 
- -
- -
- -

Diagnostic support Diagnostic support 
programme programme 

NA NA 
NA NA 

(f Crores) 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

40.17 46.35 
5,29,25,052 5,29,25,052 

7.59 8.76 
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27 Crttlcal accounttng judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, and, income and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Such judgments, estimates and associated 
assumptions are evaluated based on the Company's historical experience, existing market conditions, as well as forward looking estimates 
including estimation of the effects of uncertain future events, which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. The estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and Mure 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 
The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the process of applying the Company's 
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements and/or key sources of 
estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year. 

Expected cost of completlon of contracts 

For the purpose of arriving at Revenue from construction contracts, the Company's Management estimates the cost to completion for each 
project Management systematically reviews future projected costs and compares the aggregate of costs incurred to date and future cost 
projections against budgets, based on which, proportionate revenue (or anticipated losses), if any, are recognised. 

Contract varfaUons 

Contract variations are recognised as revenue to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue which can be reliably measured 
and is probable that the economic benefits associated will flow to the Company. This requires the exercise of judgement by management, 
based on prior experience, the contract terms, manner and te1Tns of settlement, etc. 

Rebalos and discounts 

The Company provides rebates and discounts to its dealers and channel partners based on an expectation of volumes to be achieved and 
parameters such as exdusivity in mari<.eting the products of the Company, quality of showroom among other parameters. This involves a 
certain degree of estimation of whether all the parameters to provide discounts have been achieved. Provision for discount and rebates is 
based on the Company's past experience of volumes achieved vis-8.-vis targets and expected volumes to be achieved for the year. 

WarrantJes 

Provision for warranty costs in respect of products sold which are still under warranty is based on the best estimate of the expenditure that will 
be required ta settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting per1od. Warranty costs are estimated by the management based on 
specific warranties, daims and claim history. Provision is made for estimated liability in respect of warranty cost in the year of sale of goods. 

Inventory 

The Company has a defined policy for provision of slow and non-moving inventory based on the ageing of inventory. Obsolete and other non­
saleable inventory are adjusted to reflect the recoverable value of inventory.The Company reviews the policy at regular intervals. 

Employee benent plans 

The present value of defined benefit obligations is determined on an actuarial basis using a number of underlying assumptions, including the 
discount rate and expected increase in salary costs. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the canying amount of obligations. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at least once a year. The lives are dependent 
upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives basedon various internal and external factors 
including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the 
Management 

Fair value measurement or financial Instruments 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in 
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the OCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from 
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of jt.:dgement is iequired in establishing fair values. J~dgements 
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes In assumptions about these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of financial instruments. 

lmpalnnent of financial assets 

The impairment provision for financial assets (other than trade receivables) are based on assumptions of risk of default and expected loss 
rates. The Company makes judgements about these assumptions for selecting the inputs to the impaimient calculation, based on the 
Company's past history, existing n:-iarket conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 
Trade receivables are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts which are 
based on the aging of the receivable balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management 
deems them not be collectible. 
The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following : 
i. Trade receivables 
ii. Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables) 
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
In case of trade receivables, the G~oup follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime EGL is measured and recognised as 
loss allowance. 
In case of other assets (listed as (ii) and (iii) above), the Group determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial 
asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of sucll assets has not increased significantJy, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured 
and recognised as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantJy, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and 
recognised as loss allowance. · 
Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, the Group reverts ta recognizing impairment loss allowance based an 12-month EGL 
ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts detemiined by a rang~ of outcomes, taking into 
account the time value of money and other reasonable info1Tnation available as a result of past events, current conditions and forecasts of 
future economic conditions. 
As a practical expedient. lhe Group uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is 
prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. 
At each reporting date, the historically observed oefault rates and changes in the forward-looking es!irr>atas are updaled. 
ECL impaimient loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Consolidated Statement of 0" 
Profit and Loss, ~ 
Income taxes and Deferred taxes 

Provision of current and deferred tax liabilities is dependent on Management estimate of the allowab;lity or olherwise of expenses incurred and 

other debits to profit or loss. Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 

available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement ls reGuired to determine the amount of deferred tax 

assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely liming and the level of future taxa~e profits together with future tax planning strategies. 
Significant judgements are also involved in determining the provision for income taxes, lnduding amount expected to be paid/recovered for 
uncertain tax positions. In assessing the probable outcome of the uncertain tax positions management considers the expert advice , past 
pronouncements, judgements on the matter under litigation, changes in regulations and related interpretations and accordingly, determines the 
amount of requisite tax provisions and I or contingent liability disclosures, as applicable. The actual outcome cf the uncertain tax positions 
could be different than those estimated by the managemenl 

Expected coat of compfetton of projects I Long tenn service contracts 

For the purpose of arriving at Revenue from projects, the Company's Management estimates the cost to completion for each project. 

_ Management systematically reviews future projected costs and compares the aggregate of costs incurred to date and future costs projections 

against budgets, on the basis of which, proportionate revenue (or anticipated losses), if any, are recognized. 
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28 Employee benefits disclosure 

I. Defined benefit plans 

a. Gratuit/ 
The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan') covering eligible employees.The fund formed by the Parent Company manages the investments of the 
Gratuity fund. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement. death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective 
employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the Group. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each 
Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The Company cont.ributes all ascertained liabilities to 1he Gratuity Fund Trust (the Trust) . 

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and Losses, through remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognised in net profit in the profit or 
loss. 

Expected rate of return on investements is determined based on the assessment made by the Company at the beginning of the year on the return expected on its existing portfolio, along with the 
estimated incremental investments to be made during the year. Yield on portfolio is calculated on a suitable mark-up over the benchmark Governement securities of similiar maturities. The Compay 
expects to contribute ~ 0.26 Crores in Gratuity Fund FY 2025-26 (FY 2024-25 ~ 0.30 Crores) 

Disclosure Information : 
(i) Chanae in present val 

Particulars 

,f defined benefit obligation· 

Defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 
Current service cost 
lnt.erest expense 
Benefits paid 
Remeasurements 
a. Due to change in demographic assumptions 
b. Due to change in financial assumptions 
c. Due to experience adjustments 
Defined benefit obl igation at I.he end of the year 

(ii) Change in fair value of plan assets 

Particulars 

Fair Value of the plan asset at the beginning of the year 
Expected Return on plan assets (Interest income) 
Contributions 
Benefit paid 
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 

I 

Gratuity (Funded) 
31st March, 2025 

2.76 
0.36 
0.20 

(0.11) 

. 0.11 
(0.20) 
3.11 

Gratuitv IFundedl 
31st March, 2025 

2.85 
0.20 
0.30 

(0.11 ) 
3.24 

Cf Crores) 
Additional Grotu ity 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
3.20 0.02 0.02 
0.36 0.00 0.00 
0.24 0.00 0.00 

(1.13) (0.00) (0.01) 

0,03 0.00 0.00 
0.06 (0.00) 0.00 
2.76 0.02 0.02 

(f Crores) 
Additional Gratuitv 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
3.19 - -
0.23 - -
0.55 - -

(1.13) - -
2.85 - -
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(iii) Components of defined benefit cost recognised in statement of profit & loss (P&L) 

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 
31st March, 2025 

Current service cost u.36 
Interest cost -
Exoected return on olan asset (0.01) 
Total 0.35 

(iv) Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other compreher.sive income (OCI) 

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 
31st March, 2025 

a. Due to change in demographic assumptions -
b. Due to change in financial assumptions 0.11 
c. Due to change in experience adjustments (0.20) 
d. (Return) on plan assets (excl. interest income) -
Total (0.09) 
Total defined benefit cost recognized In P&L and OCI 0 •. 26 

(v) Net liability I (asset) in Balance Sheet 

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 
31st March, 2025 

Present value of Defined benefil obligation 3.11 
Fair value of plan assets 3.24 
Net liability I (asset) (0.13) 

(vi) Net defined benefit liability I (asset) reconciliation 

Particulars Gratuitv (Funded) 
31st March, 2025 

Net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the year (0.09) 
Defined benefit cost recognised in P&L 0.35 
Total remeasurements recognised in OCI (0.09) 
Employer contributions (0.30) 
Employer direct benefit payments -
Net defined benefit liability I (asset) as of end of the year (0.13) 

Th ,fol foll ---- -- -- - - ___ ,_,,,. _____ - ..--- - -- - - - - - - -- ---- ---

Particulars ; 31st March, 2025 
Insurance company products 2.59 
others 0.65 
Tota l 3.24 

(} 

(f Crores) 
Addit.ional Gratuity 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
0.36 o.ou 0.00 
- 0.00 0.00 

0.00 - -
0.36 0.00 0.00 

(f Crores) 
Additional Gratuity 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
- - -

0.03 0.00 0.00 
0.06 (0.00) 0.00 

- - -
0.09 (0.00) 0.00 
0.45 0.00 0.00 

(f Crores) 
Additional Gratuity 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
2.76 0.02 0.02 
2.85 - -

10.09) 0.02 0.02 

(f Crores) 
Addit ional Gratuity 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
0.01 0.02 0.02 
0.36 0.00 0.00 
0.09 (0.00) 0.00 

(0.55) - -
- - -

(0.09) 0.02 0.02 

(f C 
31st March, 2024 

2.28 
0.57 
2.85 
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The Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and additional gratuity for the company's plan are is shown as below: 

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) I Additional Gratuity 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Discount rate 6.50% 7.15% 
Rate of return on plan assets 7.14% 7.37% 
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14 
Salary escalation rate (Directors-management-slaff--0thers) · 10%,7%,3% 10%,7%,3% 
Attrition rate 11% 11% 
Disability rate 5% of mortality rate 5% of mortality rate 
Normal retirement age 65 Years for Directors 65 Years for Directors 

60 Years for Others 60 Years for Others 

Risk analysis 
Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of all interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result 
in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements). 

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts.This may arise due to non availabilty of enough cash I cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or 
holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time. 

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary 
in future for plan participants from the rate of increase In salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liabilty. 

Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the 
liability.The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption. 

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit Is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring 
higher gratuity payouts(e.g.lncrease in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20,00,000) . 

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration of the liabilty is longer compared to duration of assets.exposing the Company to market risk for volatilities/fall in interest Tate. 

Investment Risk : The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment. 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at March 31, 2025 is shown as below: 

Particulars I Gratuity (Funded) I Additional Gratuity 
Assumptions 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
Decrease in discount rate (+/-0.5%) 3.20 2.84 0.02 0.02 

/l, Increase in discount rate (+/-0.5%) 3.02 2.68 0.02 0.02 
[j _ Decrease in Salary grow1h rate (+/-0.5%) 3.02 2.68 - -

SKIN~ Increase in Salarv growth rate (+/-0.5%) 3.20 2.84 - -

EJ
~ cf '\. Decrease in attrition rate (+/-0.5%) 3.18 2.79 0.02 0.02 

l.JJ Ol Increase in attrition rate (+/-0.5%) 3.05 ' 2.72 0.02 O.IJ2 
I- ~ Decrease in mortality rate (+/-0.5%) 3.11 2.76 0.02 0.02 I 
t MUMBAI r Increase in mortality rate (+f-0.5%) 3.11 2.76 0.02 o.o~~~RING 4' ~ O~ ~'°\A.VJ The sensitivity analyses above have been· determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on aefined benefit obligation as a resu!t of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurrir r~I-,...--...~ 

o * o the end of the reporting year 2024-25 I ~ r '~)) 
· The Weighted average dur3tion of the defined benefit plan obiigation at the end of the reporting year 2024-25 is 5 years. ';;> \ J~ 

~~;~ 
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I. General description of significant defined plans: 
1. Gratuity plan 
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on separation /retirement based on 15 days last drawn salary for each completed years of service after continous service for 5 years. 

2. Additional gratuity 
Additional gratuity is payable as per the specific rules of the Company i.e ~ 5,000/- for staff and ~10,000/- for Managers subject to qualifying service for 15 years. 

The Company makes annual contribution to Blue Star Employees Gratuity Fund , which is a funded final salary defined benefit plan for the qualifying empl0yees. 

Expected cash flows 
1 year 
2 to 5 year 
6 to 10 year 
More than 10 year 
Total 

II. Defined contribution plans 
a. Provident fund 

Gratuity (funded) Additional Gratuity 
0.61 0.00 
1.62 0.01 
1.07 0.01 
1.51 0.01 
4.81 0.05 

The Company's contribution to provident fund and other funds aggregating during the period ended 31st March, 2025 is~ 1.39 Crores (and during the year ended March 31 , 2024: ~ 1.38 Crores) 
has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head employee benefit expense (refer note 22). 

b.Compensated Absence Plan 
Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement, superannuation or 
resignation at the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulation of leave days. 

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet (f Crores) 
Partlculars ComDensated absences as at 

31st March, 2025 I 31st March, 2024 
Amount recorrnised In Balance Sheet 1.21 1.21 

Amount recognlzed in Profit and Loss (f Crores) 
Particulars Compensated absences for the vear ended 

31st March, 2025 I 31st March, 2024 
Amount recognised In Profit and loss 0.51 0.59 

&1 
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ll Rdtt:cd pal)! dhdo&u'e 

a) Nilme al' the Related parties where control e)[lsls lrres,.ectlve cf whether transactions have oecurred or nol 

Related parties. where controlli ext.ts. Parent Company 
Blue Star Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary with whom transacUons are done 
Blue Star Climatech Ltd 
Blue Stilr Systems and Sol~om> LLC 

POlil~mployee benefit enUtlu 
81ueSWFounda11on 

Key Management Personnel 
Mr. Vir Advani, Chairman 
Mr. BTI-iagarajan,Oirector 
Mr. NikM Ramakrishna Sohori, Director 
Mr. Prem KaBialh, Chief Executive Officer 
Mr, Arvind Balaji, Non-Execltive and Independent Director 
Mr. Vikram Nirula, Non-E>tecutive and Independent Director 
Mii; Suneina Murthy, Non-Executive and Independent Director 

Puttcul11rs 
b) Tr .. n with •-'"'l.ui nartles 

Blw S!r blmfl esf 

Income: 
Contract Revenue 
Sale of Products 
Rent income 

Elf.penss: 
Purchase of Stock-in -trade 
Sb1u od Service cha·rge& 
E:tpel'llel on employees stock option of the holding company 
Rtimb.ntmert ol E>tpensea 

Blue St?r Eoundqgpn 
CSR Paymerit 

Ww tbr Sntgrn • •rd S ehtd9"! l LC 
Rcilm hl,11r.amfldofetP11~ 

Blut' Star Limited 
Balance due -Recelvabld(payable) 
Trade Receivables 
Security Deposit 

Short term employee bandits 
Remuneration Paid I Payable (lncludlng 
commlHlon) 
Prem K~lialh 

Yogesh Joshi 

Stttlng fees to Non-Executive and Independent Directer 
ArvindBalaji 
ViknimNirula 
SunalnaMurthy 

Comm!ulon to Non-Ex-.cutl"e and Independent Director 
Arvind Balaji 
VikramNirula 
SunainaMurthy 

e) ~' 10 tctal.ad P11nJn 

Siu. Star Limited 

aao:m:no ol the year 
L.c.a,..ad\I~ 
lo:.an repayment received 
ltitt..Udmroo-d • 
ft6!oltrec.fi\lcd 

Ei'KI04'~ year 

B l lJO S.t.a.r Cllmatt!Ch 
B19'nN!g d ibl) year 
l.Olt>9 ld""nccd 
Loan repayment received 
llUftf;t(l\OJgod 

lrierest 1tclli¥1!d 
End or the year 

Prem Kalllath 
a~ottheyear 
l.~n Recovery 

End ottheyear 

YogHhJoshl. 

lfCroru' 
fOI the at ended 

3fst· M~~ 2025 31:1.1 MMch 202' 

1.13 
030 0.00 
3.57 3.42 

012 0.11 
570 1.32 
021 

0,83 0.09 

020 0.20 

038 

F0t lhCI EM ended 
llatM~1crLl025 lbl M..vdl. 201' 

(5.11) 0.11 
(2. 56) (2 56) 

F°' lbe c.ar cndcd 
lt1.1 M.:irch.. 20as l 1a.I M.\tcn. 202' 

2,09 2,74 
a 87 0,75 

0,0< 0,04 
0.0< 005 
0,0< 003 

0 OB 0 ,09 
o,oa 0.09 
008 0.09 

31s-I hlm-c.h. 2025 31.sl llbrc t\. Ul1A 

8500 120.00 
245,00 85.00 

(10S.OOI (12000) 
5,79 8.11 

(S.7S) (8.11) 

•25.00 85,00 

35.00 35.00 
128.00 3500 
(83.00) (35.00) 

3.84 272 
(3.8' ) (2.7<!) 
80.00 35 00 

0.12 0.14 
(0.C)1) (0.01) 
0.11 0.12 

Brtim!ng of the year 0 03 0 03 
lo .. ROCOWI)' (OJIO) (0.00) 
EM crl Cho tJc-a.r a ,Ol 0 03 
Nott.: '1 ~c :al ~mcut 11.re ta:M:t .amowt ua.tdng t:nr.s 
2J As dM bbi:iM fof 41~ and le eve encashmert ere provided on actuarial basis for lhe Company a& a whole, 
tM amounla perlaining to lhe Otredorg are nol induded above. 

P~ge31ofU 



Blu1 5*.111 1$.rsglnecflng f. EJecttonk.:li UmJtcd 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Not ... toflnH\Cl:iJ StJliltn1C1nts fc,thc yoAJ and'itd' 31•1 M.-rc.h :M:IM 

30. Cerlvathte ln5lrumenl5 and attached foreign currency u:po5Ure 

The Company has a \Nel4efined rorex Oek management pclcy wnich el1$uree proactive and regular moftlaMg Md managing of foreign exchange eiq>osures. Financial risks relating to 
changes in e:.'change rate& are hedged by forward and op$of\1 ~\lai:ts. The hedging strategy i$ used tow)ldt managing currency ftucluation risk and lhe Company does not use foreign 
exchange forward and options con1ract for lrading or speculative purposes_ 
Forward and options conlracl :are fair valued at each reporting dale. The result1nt gain or loss of forward and option contract is recognised ln the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
Commodity riek Is mitigated by entering into annual rate contracts y,.ith major suppliers which is factored in pricing doclslons, This approach provides sufficient mitigation against volatility in 
commodity rates 

a} OerfvaUve ln1truments: F0tward conlractoutstandlng as at Betance Sheet date 
There are no forward I opt)on contract outstanding as on 31st March 2025. (31st March 202-4 : Nil) 

b} Particular5 of Un-hedged foreign Currency Exposura as at the Balance Sheet date 

P.ut1c1.11""1 At. .1131~1 MDtc.h 20ZS As ... ,,,, M.i1ch. :il.02'1 
Foreign Currency Amount In f Crores Amount In 

Foreign Currency Foreign Currency 
In Crores In Crotes 

Bin.le bll•l'lees 
AED o.co II.CO o.co 
EUR o.o• 3.33 0.01 
CAD o.co II.CO Q.00 

l.lSD 0.05 4,40 0.10 

Atc~Vi:l!blH 

AW 0.00 0.10 D.DD 
C'IO o.co 0.1)1 o.co 
EUR 0.02 1.n 0.02 
GBP o.co o.a.. 0.00 
JPY 0.22 0,13 a.22 
USO D. t1 U< 0.1• 

Po1v:1blc:1 
AED 0.00 0.11 0.00 
Cl'D II.OD (t.()'3 0.00 
EUR 003 2.3S 0.01 
GBP 0.01 
JPY i .78 1.01 1.1"3 
M'IR D.00 0.01 o.co 
USO 0.08 U • 0.1' 
CHF 

The un-h!ldged for!lign currency exposures have been gfven in respect of currencies other lh21n lunctional currency ol the company 

J1. Flnanclal Instruments 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 

Investments (refer note 6) 

Trade recelva~es (refer note 7) 

Cash & bank balances (refer note 6) 

Loam; (refer note •a) 

Other financial assel6 (rerer nole •b) 

Fln.11u:I• ! UabllitiM 

Trade payables (refer note 12) 

Lease Liablilies (refer note 13) 

Olher financial liabilities (rerer note 12) 

FVTPL 

20.41 

20.41 

As at March 31, 2025 

Amorti s.ed Cost 

51.82 

64.77 

205.55 

1.25 

323.40: 

69.59 

0.9~ 

2.8'.;t 

73.34 

Total 
Carrying 

value 

20.41 

51 82 

64.77 

205.55 

1.25 

343.81 

69.5' 

0.94 

2.82 

73.34 

f Crores 

0.01 
0.52 

8.12 

0.10 
0.0< 
2.0• 
D.01 
0.12 

11,92 

0.11 
0.00 
Dll 
0.81 
O.B.2 
0,0, 

11 11 

Toh.I Fair 

vak.. 

20.41 

51.Bl 

64.77 

205,55 

1.25 

343.81 

69,59 

094 

2 82 

73.34 

FVTPL 

30.02 

30.02 

As at March 31, 2024 

AmortlHd Cost Total 

87.23 

5' 88 

12063 

1.14 

263.88 

82.32 

2~511 

84.90 

Carrying 

v.alue 

30.02 

87.23 

54 88 

120 63 

1. 14 
2D3.90 

82..32 

2 58 
84.9~ 

Total Fair 

value 

30 O? 

87.23 

5488 

120_63 

U-4 
2YJ.90 

82.32 

2.58 
84.90 

1.Lan•;"'1Ml bu ali!len ad that C•1Pli 111od eosh c.Q!Jlltahmta. 0Uii11 blllaricn "Mtn bll'lli:t. Loin•. T11c:So reGC!lvablu.. Other ~ncf.611S!fft.I. Tra.:i• p1y•tihtt., SorrO'Mn;t. UIH~ " bit.al 1t\d OClier lbuincilll ltilbl 'a.t car~ a1 11omQl'tftCI cost 

approximate lheir carrying amount!> largefy due lo the short-term mal\Jrili~ of lhm;e instruments, 

32. Fair value hierarchy 

Partlcular5 

Assets for which fair values are dlsclosed: 
Investment property (refer note 3b) 
Assets measured at fair value 
lnvuttn1M in. muti.lll lund (rtittr ~ llo) 

~Jrch fOI whieh fair "'fUH a11 df.sc:loud: 
hivUtrnttnr p.-oprft~ ('1fer note lb) 
Asntll m111111.trod 01 f4l r Y:11kae 
lnvutrn1,. In mut~al Pun d' ft.ftn n011t 6 \ 

There have b11en no lransfer& between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during lhe year 

Valuation. technlque and key Inputs used lo delermlne rah value: 

1, level-2: 
Mutual Fund - quoted price in the active market 

2. Level-3: 
ln\Je&tment Property- Based on valuation report of independenl valuer 

Date of Valuatlon 

March 31, 2025 

March 31, 2025 

March 31 , 2024 

March 31 . 202-4 

Unquo1td prlc:a-.1. SltanKlc:.D"t Sf.gniflc:af".t U" 
Toi.al In active markets abHl'Y9blc lnpuU observable inputs 

(Level1) (Lavel Z) (Level 3) 

5625 56.25 

20.-41 20.41 

7336 7336 

30_0.2 30.02 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronlcs Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Flnanclal Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

33, Financial rtsk management objectives and pollcles 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of short tenured borrowings, trade and other payables and financial guarantee contracts. Most of these liabilities relate to 
financing Company's working capital cycle. The Company has trade and other receivables, loans and advances that arise directly from Its operations. The Company also enters 
into hedging transactions to cover foreign exchange exposure risk. 

The Company is accordingly exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Company's senior management oversees management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk 

governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors. This process provides assurance that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are 

governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company's policies and overall risk 

appetite. All foreign currency hedging activities for risk management purposes are carried out by a specialist treasury team that have the appropriate skills, experience and 

supervision. In addition, independent views from bankers and currency market experts are obtained periodically to validate risk mitigation decisions. It is the Company's policy 

that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken. 

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below: 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise currency rate 

risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk inciude loans and borrowings, deposits, advances and derivative financial instruments. 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rate movement. 

Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fUture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company 
transacts business in local currency and in foreign currency, primarily US Dollars. The Company has foreign currency trade payables and receivables and is therefore, exposed 
to foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward contracts or foreign exchange options towards hedging risk resulting from changes and fluctuations in foreign 

currency exchange rate. These foreign exchange contracts, carried at fair value, may have varying maturities varying depending upon the primary host contract requirement 
and risk management strategy of the company. 

Foreign currency sensitivity 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD, Euro and other currencies to the functional currency of the Company, with all other variables held constant. The 
impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including foreign currency derivatives. 

Effect on prom before tax 

Particulars 
Change In currency 

exchange rate For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

US Dollars +5% 0 ,08 0.10 
-5% (0,08) (0.10) 

Euro +5% 0.03 0.02 
~5% (0.03) (0.02) 

CAD +5% 0.00 0.00 
~5% (0.00) (0.00) 

JPY +5% (1.56) (0.91) 
~5% 1.56 0.91 

AED +5% (0.00) (0.00) 
~5% 0.00 0.00 

MYR +5% (0.00) (0.00) 
-5% 0.00 0.00 

CHF +5% - -
~5% . . 

GBP +5% 0.00 (0.01) 
-5% I0.001 0.01 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

Credit rtsk 

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to 
credit risk from its operating activities, primarily trade receivables and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other 
financial instruments. 

1.Trade receivables 
Cuslomer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk managemenl 

Trade receivables are non~nterest bearing and are generally on credit term in line wfth respective industry norms. Outstanding customer receivables are regularty monitored. 

The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base Is widely distributed both economicelly and geographically. (refer note 6 for detailed ageing) 

2. Financial Instruments and cash deposits 
Credit risk from balances with banks and mutual funds is managed by Company's treasury in accordance with the Board approved policy. Investments of surplus funds, 
temporarily, are made only with approved counterparties, mainly bank fixed deposits and mutual funds, who meet the minimum threshold requirements under the counterparty 
risk assessment process. 

Liquidity rtsk 
liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's 
objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet it cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a 
robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans, debt, and overdraft from both domestic and International banks at an optimised 
cosl. It also enjoys strong access to domestic and international capital markets across various debt and hybrid instruments 

The lable below summarise the maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments: . -·-·--
Particulars 31 SI March, 2026 31st March, 2024 

1.ess than 1 year More than 1 year Tota.I Less than 1 vear More than 1 vear Total 
Trade Payables 69.59 - 69.59 82.32 - 82.32 
Lease liablities 0.20 0.74 0.94 
Other Financial liabilities - 2.82 2.82 2.58 2.58 

34. Capital management 
Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the company and net debt. 
Primary objeclive of Company's capital management is to ensure thel it maintains an optimum financing structure and healthy returns in order to support its business and 
maximize shareholder value. 
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments, In light of the changes in economic conditions or business requirements. 

35 (a). Disclosure u/s 186(4) of the companies Act, 2013 

During the year the Company has placed Inter Corporate Deposits (ICO) with holding company Blue Star Limited & fellow subsidiary company Blue star Climatech Ltd 
aggregating to Rs 125 Crores and Rs 80 Crores for financing the working capital requirments and capex requirments of the business respectively 
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36 Contingent llabllities 

Future cash Olllflows in respect of mailers considered disputed are determinable only on receipt o( judgments I decisions pending al various forums/aulhorUies. The managemenl does not expect lhese claims 10 
succeed end accordingly, no provision for the conlingenl liability has been recognized in the financial statements. 

The Company's pending Ftigatrons comprise of proceedings pending with tax authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for Where provisions 
are required and disclosed contingent liabilities where applicable, in !ls financial statemenls. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings ta have a material adverse erfecl on thd financial 
statements. 

Pilrtltul~rs 

Claims ag;lnst the. ct1mpany not oitkno\lriedatd as debls 
VATMO.lter5 
.GST Motto rs 
Inc.om.a i.Jx maUeC'$ 
Tollll 

37 Commitments 

Particulars 
Eslima.ttd amount cf COf'lltlCt.S remaining to be oxee1u1cd on CJ11pi\1I •ccounl 
and not ptOvfded for (nt\ of advances). 

31st Marc:h, :ZOU 

1.22 
2.31 

3.53 

3111 lhrch 2025 

(f Crorul 
lhl March. 2.02' 

1.2.S 
1.22 
D.23 

17.116 
20.5' 

fCrores) 
3ht M1rc.h. 2024 

0 91 

315 During the previous year, the company received a notice from the Stamp Duty Collector Office for non-payment of stamp duty amounting to Rs. 984 fakhs for lhe business purchase transaction of O S Gupta 

Conslrucilon Private Limited carried out during FY 2010-11. Based on the legal opinion obtained, the Company applied for the Amnesty scheme in February 2024 and provided Rs. 205 lakhs. 

As per the terms laid dawn in the said scheme, approved by the Honourable High Court in 2010-11, such payment or stamp duty is adjusted in the Securities Premium account, In accordance with the Scheme or 

Arrangement between Blue Star Electro Mechanlcal Limiled (the Company) and its Shareholders & Creditors, duly approved by the Honourable High Court of Judicature al Bombay vide its order dated March 

2011. During the year, the Company received the final order from the Stamp Duty Collector Office on 13 February 2025, wherein the amount payable on account of stamp duty was determined to be Rs. 168 

lakhs. Conseque11lly, an excess amount of Rs. 37 lalc.hs on account of stamp duty, which was adjusted in the Securities Premium accounl in the previous year, has been credited back lo lhe Securities Premium 

account in the current year based on the final order received from the Stamp Duly Conec1or Office as menlioned above . 

39 Segment lnfoimation: The Company is mainly into distribution and maintenance of imported professional electronics and industrial syslemsy Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind 
AS -108 on 'Operating Segmer.l' and no further disclosures are required. 

40 Disclosure in connection with revenue from contracts with customers 
(a) Disaggregation of revenue 
The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracls with customers for the year ended March 31, 2025 by offerings end contract-type. The Company believe that this dtseggregallon best depicts how 
the nature, amount, limin~ and uncertainly of revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors: 

P artic_ulars Yell:r ended 31st March, 1025 

Revenue by segment type Overtime At a point in time 

Professional electronics and industrial systems 63.72 289.94 
To1al 63.72 2lU4 

(b) Reconciliation of contracted price with lhe revenue recognized in profit or loss 

Particulars 
Sale of products al transaction price 
Less: Redue1ion towards variable consideration components 
Revenue recognised on sale or produts 

There are no v1uilblo COf\iide.raHon ln contract price of pcojoci revenue. 

( )R venu c e u- r fo th e reconc 1a ion r c year 

Partlculll' 
O,icnlng batanc:~- contract assets (net or lmpalrmMI) 
Opening balance contract llabllities .. 
Add: Revenue recognised durtng the year 
less: Proort-5S bllHna durina the veur 
Clcnilna b11lance-
CloslnD bal'1nee eonttOGl .n.sse11 (11CI or impalrmflnl) 
CIMfno ba lonc& contract l ll1bHlll® l~ludlrin lncome n~CA!Ivcd rn odvoace 
•The ComD1nv has trcatu'liHd revci.m.H1 out of QDenlna conlrad llabiliti~ 

Cron~.s) 

3ts• March, lQ25 31st Much, l02.t 
284.12 312.64 

(rcrotes1 
Yur ended Jtst Mu,h, 2024 

Total Overtime At a point In time Total 

353.66 53.04 329.96 383.01 
353.66 53.04 324J,g6 383.0t 

tf CfOrt!til 

31"1it Mllrch, 2026 ltlUAltch 2024 
4.2~ 5,01 

(49.39) (e0.93) 
63.72 &3.0< 

146.41 "2.22 
127.79 145.10 

3.41 4,29 . 
131.21 149.39 
117.5, [37.36 
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CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

41. Analytical Ratio 

Particulars Definition 
Current ratio Current assets I Current liabilities 
Return on Equity Ratio Net profit after tax I average shareholders equity X 100 

Inventory turnover Ratio( No.of days) Cost of goods sold for the year I average inventory for the year 
Trade receivables turnover ratio (No. of Revenue from operation for the year I average debtors for the year 
days) 
Trade payables turnover ratio (No.of days) Cost of goods sold for the year /average creditors for the year 
Net capital turnover ratio (In times) Revenue from operation I working capital 
Net profit ratio Profit/( Loss) for the year I Total Revenue from operation X 100 
Return on capital employed (Profit before tax+ finance charge) I capital employed 

Return on investment 
Return on mutual fund Income from investment I cost of investment X 100 
Return on Fixed deposit Income from inveslment I cost of investment X 100 
Note: 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 % Variance 
2.69 2.16 24% 
14% 19% -26% 

5.29 5.87 -10% 
5.09 4.48 14% 

3.76 3.34 13% 
1.35 1.84 -27% 
11% 12% -6% 
17% 24% -27% 

13% 3% 272% 
8% 6% 29% 

1.) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR), Debt-Equity ratio are not applicable due to no long term loan repayment made during the year & no outstanding loan as on 31st march 2025 
2.) Schedule Ill require explanation where the change in ratio is more than 25% as comapred to the preceding year. Accordingly explanation is given only for the said ratio. 

& 

Reason for variance 
Below threshold of 25% 
Other expenses increased in current year 
Impacted return on equity 
Below threshold of 25% 
Below threshold of 25% 

Below threshold of 25% 
Improvement in debtors recovery 
Below threshold of 25% 
Other expenses increased in current year 
impacted return on equity 

Due to investment made in current year 
Due to Investment made in current year 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 

42. Leases 

Operating lease : company as a lessee 
The Company has entered into operating lease agreements for storage locations . Lease rental expenses debited to Statement of Profit & Loss under 
rent charges "2.68 Crores (31st March 2024: "3.07 Crores). 

Operating lease : company as a lessor 
The Company has entered into operating lease agreements . . Lease rental income credited to Statement of Profit and Loss is " 3.57 Crores (31st 
March 2024 : " 3.42 Crores). 

43. Other statutory information 

(i) The company neither holds any benami property nor any proceedings have been initiated or pending against the copmpany for holding benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder. 
(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under companies act 2013 or company act 1956. 
(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with registrar of companies beyond the statutory period, 
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year. 
(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the 
understanding that the intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities .identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate 
beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 
(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: . 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (ultimate 
beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries, 
(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as.search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the 
income Tax Act, 1961 . 

(viii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 
(ix) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year 

44. Previous Year Comparatives 
Corresponding figures for the immediately preceding period are disclosed in the financial statements. Previous years' figures have been recompanyed 
where necessary to confirm to this year's classification. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

VirSAdvani 
Chairman 
Din: 01571278 

\~ 

Nikhil Sohoni 
Director 
Din: 06852639 

Yogesh Joshi ~~) Kalliath 

~~; & Director 
Din: 07249861 

CFO & Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 23, 2025 
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